SELECTMEN’S OFFICE
TOWN OF GILMANTON
PO Box 550, Gilmanton, NH 03237
Fax: (603) 267-6701  Website: www.gilmantonnh.org

1  Board of Selectmen Meeting Approved
2  March 03-04-2024- Academy Building — 5:00 P.M.
3 CALL TO ORDER — ROLL CALL
4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
5 Present: Chairman Mark Warren, Vice-Chairman Vincent Baiocchetti, Selectmen Evan Collins, Town
6  Administrator Heather Carpenter
7  Public: Darrell Elliott, Brett Currier, David Clairmont
8
9 MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL
10 1. 02-19-2024 - Meeting Minutes — In progress
11
12 CONSENT AGENDA
13 2. PO - Brian Forst Transportation — Winter sand, $30,000
14 3. LRPC- HHW Letter of Commitment for 2024
15 4. State of NH Forest Protection Bureau — Candidate information and municipal recommendation
16 5. Community Development — Timber Tax; 423-30 - $2,407.02; 403-20 - $1,653.18; LUCT 414-07 - $14,120;

17 410-41 - $9,500.

18  Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to approve the

19  consent agenda. (3-0)

20

21 Chairman Warren asked for clarification regarding the PO for the winter sand, noting last he had heard, there
22 was plenty of sand on-site.

23 TA Carpenter clarified that it was full, but it has been used. She believes this portion should go behind GYO.

24  Further discussed was the lighting project and the need for more sand.

25  TA Carpenter noted that Brian Forst would be present at the meeting so the Selectboard agreed to table the

26  discussion until he arrived.

27

28  Motion: On a motion by Vice Chairman Baiocchetti and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to authorize
29  the Chairman to sign the letter of commitment to the Household Hazardous Waste Product Collection for 2024.

30 (3-0)

31

32  NEW BUSINESS

33 6. Governor’s Road Subdivision Discussion — Darrel Elliott on behalf of HDC — Darrel Elliott will be present
34 later in the meeting.

35 7. Oaths — Moderator Pro-Tem, Selectman Pro-Tem, Ballot Clerks

36 Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by it was voted to approve the Oath of Office for Drew
37 Taylor, Trevor Munroe, Richard Lucas, and Angela Canezin as ballot clerks. The Selectmen Pro-Tem and
38  Moderator to be determined. (3-0)

39 8. Perkins Painting, LLC — Academy Building interior painting and first floor discussion.

40 TA Carpenter stated that the basement painting is almost complete. The painter does not have time to
41 do the main floor until fall. The office is trying to coordinate the paint, the carpeting, and the furniture
42 moving at one time, to be done in a week. Employees will still be present, payroll still needs to be

43 completed, and work stations can be placed in the meeting space. There are some projects within the
44 building that require completion. The office will be closed to the public because both sides of the office
45 are being worked on, as well as the main corridor. The goal is for the painting and carpeting to be done

46 in a week, but there is a lot of space to cover. The office will work on minimizing the closure time.



47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94

9.

Plan to perform 2024 Full Statistical Reval — Update

TA Carpenter noted that she touched base with each of the Selectmen separately so they would
understand where the office was with the reval information. She received a letter produced by the
Assessor that she would like the Selectboard to review. A full reval is not taking place, it is a Statistical
only. The letter to the Director at DRA explains that. If you are not giving a full reval every ten years
there needs to be a reason why. It was not a monetary issue, but a timing, and staffing issue. TA
Carpenter stated there has not been a full reval with a measure and list in 20 years, since 2004. The last
statistical reval was done in 2014. There is no penalty for not doing a full reval instead of a statistical.
Statistical are very good, but it’s not what the Town requested more money for from the public.
Selectman Collins asked if this was something they could schedule and do.

TA Carpenter stated if the Selectboard wanted to do a full reval in the next two years we could
determine what that cost would be and see what the Town fund is and if it was sufficient or not or it
could be scheduled out 5 years.

Chairman Warren stated he believes it's wise to find out the cost and determine base on the cost for a
statistical and see what the cost benefit and the full reval will do for the Town versus a statistical.

TA Carpenter stated if they were interested, they could start getting costs, because it was most likely
going to increase over the next two years.

Chairman Warren stated it would be good to get a cost and scope of work, maybe there’s some
duplication of effort that could be shared to reduce some cost.

Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to submit a letter to
Mr. Sam Greene, Director of DRA with the evidence why the Town of Gilmanton is choosing to do a statistical
reevaluation as letter date March 1%, 2024.

10. 2023 Landfill Post Closure Report and Cost Estimate

TA Carpenter stated this is a report that comes out every year from NorthPoint. This is the post closure
report for the landfill that is required by DES. This process will continue for years. The cost analysis is
for auditing purposes. It gives a picture of a 30-year post closure cost. The cost does look like it's more
than in previous years. It was $130,000 versus the $230,000 that has been presented. This is a 30-year
proposed cost. The auditors require the Town to present a cost for the testing. The report is submitted
to DES yearly.

SELECTBOARD ITEMS, FYls, AND OTHER TOPICS

11.

12.

Superior Fire — Report of Inspection/Test.

TA Carpenter stated that there has been a lot of issues and troubleshooting the sprinkler system. This is
the annual inspection report. There have been no problems recently since the last fix.

Chairman Warren asked if this is in the CIP.

TA Carpenter stated the value of the fire pump does, but not the cost of the system as it ages. The main
line cost $40,000 and that was just one, versus all the smaller pipes. This is a project that the
Selectboard should start thinking about.

DPW Letter — Fact sheet discussion. Chairman Warren stated it is the Selectboards interest to put a
letter together continuing to inform the residents regarding the request to move forward with a DPW
Director. He believes they have a letter. The Selectboard will review this after the Governor’s Road
Subdivision Discussion.

NEW BUSINESS (cont.)

6.

Governor’s Road Subdivision Discussion — Darrel Elliott on behalf of HDC as a board member and also as
aresident. Darrell stated that he was there regarding the retention ponds and he went to the Planning
Board with some concerns about the esthetic nature of them. He is asking on behalf of HDC to see how
the Selectboard would feel about HDC being given the opportunity to review since they are so close to



95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141

Meeting House. He has built hundreds of these and they are not pretty, nor are they designed to be
esthetically pleasing. They are designed to irrigate water and getting overrun with cattails, invasive
species, and things of that nature. There are concerns since the AOT permit is already over there to be
reviewed and 6 structures are not within the public right of way, they are on private property and
subject to HDC approval. He feels that a step was missed and that it should have gone to HDC for
approval first and then it could have been moved forward to the Selectboard.

Chairman Warren stated he had a conversation with the Community Development Director in regards to
how that step got missed and what recourse do they have now. Chairman Warren stated that he and
Selectman Collins were present at that meeting, however Vice Chairman Baiocchetti was not there. He
did state that any foot of change needs to go before HDC. He would like to learn how it was missed and
what can they do now.

Darrell stated he doesn’t know how they go backwards. He understands there are lawyers involved and
doesn’t know how they would feel about it. He stated there are ways to treat storm water through the
AOT permit from swales, infiltration basins, extended wetlands basins which could be more in tune with
what they are looking for. If it were him, he would have asked for the pond to be built further down the
road on the corner with a swale going to it. Since the structure is so close to the road there is usually a
clear zone requirement for distance and separation, possibly fencing, and the fencing would also require
HDC approval. The stone walls on Governor’s Road would also need approval from HDC. He stated
there are elements of the Subdivision that probably should have been approved by HDC.

Chairman Warren stated that Darrell works for the State, do you believe there’s opportunity to go back
and say, is there a possibility for a redesign with the main one being the one that is planned to be on the
sharp corner.

Darrel stated that generally the Town would accept the subdivision with certain requirements such as
the resident treating their water on their property. If they can’t, then they’ll give an easement to do it
on Town property. It appears that the Town took ownership and is applying for the permit as an owner.
He stated the Town could say, stop reviewing application. The Town did sign some paperwork that
accepted responsibility stating the Town would maintain those facilities in perpetuity.

TA Carpenter stated that in the packet there was language that was consistent what Darrel has stated.
She does not recall the Selectboard signing that at their last meeting, so she is going to look into this.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti addressed Selectman Collins, and asked if this was the plan he voted no on as
a Selectboard representative for the Planning Board.

Selectman Collins confirmed.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated that the Selectboard was in agreement that they were going to follow
the staff recommendations.

Chairman Warren stated that he knows that Selectman Collins was not in favor and the question was, do
you have an independent engineer review it. He stated that he was not in favor of doing that and felt
that the State had the ability to look this over, but Selectman Collins had a different point of view on
that. Chairman Warren stated he moved in favor of moving the project forward.

Selectman Collins stated that they would be hiring a Clerk of the Works with an engineering background.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti asked if they would be hiring a third party and it would not be reviewed by
just the State.

Chairman Warren stated that there will be a hire of a person to review and ensure that it's being built
properly. He felt like the State would do that, so having another engineer would be redundant.

Darrell stated that DES doesn’t care who the applicant is, they just have a set of rules and regulations
they have to adhere to. The State is not looking at whether the Town can afford the upkeep, is it
designed properly, and just ook for minimum criteria. They just basically give the Town a permit to
build. If the structures do not work as designed, then the Town is required to make them work as



142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

designed. He stated that the Town is looking at getting someone on the DPW certified and provide
reports monthly, quarterly, weekly.

Chairman Warren stated that he felt like they needed to go back and do a little more research, what has
been signed, what has not been signed in the process, and take Darrell’s expertise, to help with their
understanding. From his point of view and he also had an engineer review this, but what he doesn’t
know, he does not know and the design was good.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated that they hadn’t accepted the road yet.

Darrell stated that was the tricky part. The manual states that the owner will maintain the road, and he
offered to go through all that with the Selectboard at a later time. There was also language that was
signed in that AoT permit which looked like convenance for the new parcels to give permission to the
Town to enter onto private property to maintain these structures. The problem is going to be that there
is going to be a mosquito pond, the homeowners are not going to want it and will fill it in. The Town will
have to address it and will have to dig it back out. The ownness of the maintenance is on the Town. He
stated that depending on what the conditions are, when the permit is issued, it then becomes the
Town’s. Darrell explained that whoever accepts maintenance of these facilities by permit will be the
ones that will be responsible in perpetuity.

Chairman Warren stated that ownership is where the Town attorney’s may need to get involved so the
Selectboard understands the language that is being brought forward.

Darrell stated he had the application and would go over it with the Selectboard and explain to them
what it all means.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti asked how are they able to expend public monies on private properties and
do they have the authority to enter into an agreement that sets them up for perpetuity.

Darrel stated he was unsure and further explained the process and other options, such as designating
one of the lots for storm water treatment. He stated he is not an engineer, but he reviews engineering
plans. When he reviewed the area the high point was in the middle of the road, half the water goes
towards Meetinghouse Rd and the rest goes towards the backside of a residents property. The pond at
the back of their property made sense, that’s on private property and on that lot. The other ones in the
front, usually what they would have done is they would have collected the water just prior to the
Meetinghouse entrance. He stated the field area would be the most conducive and dump the water
into a portion of the parcel, and treat the water there. However, that would leave roughly 100 feet of
the road area untreated, but a ditch line and cross pipe could be installed. Darrel does believe that the
plans were well done but that it was drawn up the way it was because of the guidance given to the
design team.

Chairman Warren believes this needs to go to someone other than the Selectboard to guide them on
what the Town’s legal responsibility is. He does not believe they have the ability to make those types of
agreements to expend public funds in that way.

TA Carpenter stated she has not seen a completed and signed document by the Selectboard. She
acknowledges that authorization was given to Chairman Warren to sign at document at the previous
meeting, and she is focusing on the language in that document currently. She has reached out to legal
counsel to review the document.

Chairman Warren addressed the Selectboard to see if they wanted to hear Darrel Elliott’s concerns
regarding this matter.

Darrel stated that regarding the AoT property permits, in order to inspect the property, there needs to
be an authorized individual. It needs to be someone with specific certifications. Then the property has
to be maintained within specific schedule. He further discussed a document that was included in the
package and if the permit is granted, it would need to be adhered to. The Town of Gilmanton is listed as
the responsible party. Darrel listed the items the Town of Gilmanton would be responsible for. He also
discussed the inspections that are required while building and his concern is, if the Town is indeed



190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236

responsible, it is responsible for litter and trash pickup weekly, inspecting the site for loam or loose
litter, it needs to be inspected once, but preferably twice a year, and it is mandatory the parking area is
swept. He stated that is only be something required in an association. He stated the requirements are
not typical for a Town and likely would not get done due to lack of personnel. He stated the portion that
is interesting is section 3.5, discussing inground infiltration of retention basins. The inspection
maintenance for those is to inspect those. But there is another inspection requirement that says inspect
infiltration survey after any rainfall event of 2.5 inches in a 24-hour period or greater. He stated
someone would have to be sent out there every time it rains to see how these facilities are holding up.
Section 3.5 B, stating if the infiltration system does not drain within 72 hours following a rain event, a
qualified professional, engineer, or scientist should assess the condition of the facility to determine the
measures required.

Chairman Warren stated he worked on a project, installed a catch basin, and the Town adopted the road
and it’s now the Town maintaining it. As the developer, he would not have wanted the responsibility in
perpetuity when he is not the one maintaining the road.

Darrell Elliott explained that the Town can refuse.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti clarified the Town would vote on it.

Darrell Elliott stated yes, if the Town accepts the responsibility then the Town would accept liability in
perpetuity for all the infrastructure. He stated that has not happened yet, so he was confused why the
Town is the owner of the permit application. He feels that a step is being skipped by telling the
contractor that the Town is accepting responsibility for the road.

Chairman Warren stated that legally they can’t take responsibility and there is a process for that
responsibility to be taken over in a Town vote.

Darrel Elliott stated that it’s typical for the road to be built first and then the Town would have the
opportunity to accept it as a Town road and maintain it.

Chairman Warren stated that it's his understanding that the Town has not taken on any responsibility to
maintain it at this point.

Darrell Elliott stated there are two retention ponds and a swale in the right of way, the other rain
gardens are on private property.

TA Carpenter stated the office is working on getting clarification and coming forward with the
information and his concerns. The office is working on formulating processes and they will be brought
forward to the Selectboard and to Planning Board.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti asked if HDC was going to have a say in this matter.

TA Carpenter stated that prior to Darrell’s inclusion in HDC, it was brought forward. Unfortunately, he
was not a part of HDC at that time. TA Carpenter explained the buck slip process and discussing the
project with departments and boards.

Darrell Elliott stated that he had been unable to attend the Selectboard meeting, but did attend the
Planning Board meeting and stated as an FYI, HDC needs to approve of any changes and left it at that.

SELECTBOARD ITEMS, FTls, AND OTHER TOPICS (cont.)
12. DPW Letter — Fact sheet discussion. Chairman Warren stated at the last meeting, they discussed

creating a letter to inform the residents of the direction they are moving forward with a DPW Director to
eliminate any misunderstanding with regards to the process and what work has been done, or not done.
A letter has been established and the Selectboard will review the letter and determine where it will be
published. He addressed the members of the board and asked whether they had time to review it.

The members of the board confirmed they reviewed the letter.

Selectman Collins stated the portion of the letter he would not be in favor would be suggesting one way
or the other on what way to vote. When it was originally brought forward, he did not support or oppose



237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284

the original. He prefers to allow the residents to decide. Overall, he stated it was an informational
letter.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated the Selectboard has already taken a position.
TA Carpenter stated the ballot is clear. That was also the decision through the budgetary process and
they moved in one direction to support the staff that is already in place. The petition warrant article last
year was as soon as the vote went through in 2024 to move forward with the DPW position. Even
though there was not a monetary base for the position, everything had to be put into place to prepare
for it. The ballot went through on a no support on #19 because it will be a significant impact monetarily.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated again, the Selectboard already took a stance on it publicly. They took a
stance against it, and that is why it’s on the ballot as a no.
Selectman Collins did not recall that as his personal vote.
Chairman Warren clarified it may have been a majority vote and not Selectman Collins’s personal vote.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated the fact sheet should go on the website with the job description, and
be put on the Facebook page.
Chairman Warren asked if the members of the board felt it should go into the newspaper. He wants to
ensure the correct information is getting out to the residents so they understand what they are voting
for.
Chairman Warren addressed the Selectboard and asked if they were in favor of publishing the letter as it
is stated with no changes. The Selectboard voted (2-1), Selectman Collins opposed, as objected on line
235.
Chairman Warren stated the letter will be published as stated, along with the DPW job description, on
the Town website, Town Facebook page.
Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Vice Chairman Baiocchetti it was voted to publish
the letter and DPW job description to the Town Website and the Town’s Facebook page. (2-0), Selectman
Collins opposed.

David Clairmont — Wanted to know where in the process the Town was in replacing Paul Perkins, Road Agent, as
of election day.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated because of the warrant article, there was not one. He stated it was going to
cost the Town a lot of money because they will have to hire an interim and discuss what they are going to do
based on the vote.
David Clairmont — Asked if there were candidates for the interim position.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated not at this time, because they did not know what was going to happen with
the warrant articles. He stated they had an idea what they were looking at for an interim.
Chairman Warren stated there has been some input out to the residents, but the Selectboard has not
interviewed anyone, they have not seen an application, and the Selectboard was waiting until they knew the
direction to take after the town voted.
David Clairmont — Asked if the job description had been written yet for the DPW Director.
The Selectboard confirmed that it had.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they started the process in April last year and didn’t finish it until October so
they could have a good working DPW Job description that would benefit the town. When the new petition came
through they stopped the work they were doing on this.
Chairman Warren stated that up until the new petition came through they had already done extensive work in
preparation for the DPW Director position. They realigned the departments to have the Highway employees
cross trained, and it was established when the hired for the Transfer Station that it was at a foreman level in
preparation for a DPW Director to be the Department Head supervising the foreman.

O Action Item — TA Carpenter to post letter and DPW Director job description to website and Facebook

tomorrow.



285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332

13. Board of Selectmen Operational Guidelines — TA Carpenter noted these were items that were

reviewed in 2023, changes had been agreed to, but she realized that the document hadn’t been
updated. This document needs to be signed so it can be updated on the website.

Discussed were some of the changes and whether there was a separate ethics policy. TA Carpenter
clarified there is not a standalone policy on ethics. There is mention of ethics in the personnel policy,
but elected officials are not subject to personnel policies, so each new board would have to create a
standalone policy for ethics.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti asked if the operational guidelines matched the Complaint Policy.

TA Carpenter stated that was not part of the original discussion.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated that under personnel hearing, he wanted to be sure it matched the
current policy and what they should or should not be doing when it comes to personnel disciplinary
issues or complaint issues.

TA Carpenter did not relate the operational guidelines to the personnel complaint policy in this process.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated that they could eliminate H, under personnel hearings because this is
already outlined in the Complaint Policy.

Chairman Warren suggested that it could state something like, Please see Complaint Policy Guidelines.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated, Will follow guidelines under the Town of Gilmanton Complaint Policy.
Chief Currier stated that the last portion follows their existing policy.

TA Carpenter stated the objective to the Operational Guidelines were the changes they had discussed
and made. She is not in favor of taking “H” out. It describes what they do and the Complaint Policy can
be mentioned. She suggested, For details, please follow the Complaint Policy.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated the policy should supersede these guidelines.

TA Carpenter stated the Complaint Policy would not supersede these guidelines because this would be
the newest document.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated the policy explains the procedure for a hearing. He is having a
problem with H, section 2. The part he has a problem with is, the Selectmen are not required to comply
with or establish any for set of evidentiary rules under RSA 41:16-c and believes this should be
established before the hearing takes place.

TA Carpenter stated if the preference is how it’s laid out in the Complaint Policy versus the summarized
version, they could tailor that.

Chairman Warren stated that one should reference the other.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated under H, 2, if there is documentation or there are witnesses and he
feels that section contradicts itself. The procedure used for personnel hearings should be similar to the
process for any public hearing, except the Selectboard has no obligation to answer any questions by the
participants, which he stated they shouldn’t be answering the questions anyway. In addition, either
party may call witnesses or submit evidence. But the Selectboard are not required to comply or
establish any set of evidentiary rules.

TA Carpenter stated it is up to the Selecthoard’s discretion to say that their determination is to move
forward in one direction or another and it is discretionary to a point.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated procedural things should not be discretionary.

TA Carpenter stated those are laid out in the Complaint Policy.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they are not the Operational Guidelines. He would like it to just say,
“In addition, either party may call witnesses or submit evidence to support his/her viewpoint.”
Chairman Warren stated, and provisions of RSA 43 are not applicable except for removal proceedings.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated 41:16 is removal of the Town Clerk. He stated he doesn’t believe the
RSA’s listed belong in their Operational Guidelines because those are elected positions. He stated these
are under statute. He stated the provisions are not applicable except for removal.



333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
311
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380

14.

15.

16.

Selectman Collins stated he would not know the RSAs offhand and would like them to remain in the
guidelines.

Chairman Warren addressed the Selectboard members and asked if they wanted to table the Guidelines
for now until they get further clarification.

TA Carpenter stated that she would prefer the clarification through legal counsel regarding RSA 43 and
then this can be reviewed again.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti believes that RSA 41:48 should also be included as well which pertains to
Police.

Action Item: TA Carpenter to have the Employee Complaint Policy and BOS Operational Guidelines
reviewed by legal regarding Section H, 2 to ensure they do not contradict one another.

Old Home Day — Request Board of Selectmen volunteers.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated he received an email about them doing Old Home Day and cooking
the hamburgers, hot dogs, and sausages for the event again.

Chairman Warren asked Vice Chairman Baiocchetti to reach out and let them know that he may have a
conflict on August 17",

Selectman Collins has no conflicts.

Department Head Updates — Executive, Highway, Police Department, Transfer Station, Fire Department.
Chairman Warren extended gratitude to the Department Heads and Foremen for their updates.

Goal Presentation — Samples of publicized goals.

TA Carpenter stated that the goal presentation was based on the Selectboard’s last discussion of their
2024 goals and what their possible expectation was of each Department Head. She researched what
other towns present and sometimes it’s easier to communicate to residents when it’s in writing. Not all
residents pay attention to the audio or the minutes, so presenting goals on each Department’s website
and what the goals are for 2024 can be a good way to communicate what the Town does. This can
detail what is done with the funds provided every year, and what the intentions are for the upcoming
year so that the residents can understand the goals for each department.

Chairman Warren asked if this has been presented to the Department Heads yet.

TA Carpenter stated she had not yet, because she will not present-anything to the Department Heads
that is not from the Selectboard. If the Selectboard likes the concept, she can move it forward.
Chairman Warren discussed the importance of goals and keeping the organization moving forward, but
is concerned about Departments not meeting goals due to unforeseen circumstances and how they
would navigate that.

TA Carpenter stated that sometimes day to day operations are the goal and it doesn’t have to be
something unobtainable. She further discussed the samples provided and some of the concepts she
liked.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated when the Departments do goals, it’'s good for evaluations, but if the
Departments are having issues meeting goals, then that is something that needs to be communicated
with the Selectboard.

Chairman Warren stated he is not opposed to the goals, but wasn’t sure if they should be posted
publicly and wants to be sure it’s not going to be something that will cause conflict.

TA Carpenter stated that she has heard numerous times from residents that the Town does not
communicate what is done with the budget, and they don’t responses from individual departments.
Chairman Warren stated he is good with creating goals and discussed what would be helpful to the
residents understanding.

Selectman Collins stated that should collaborate with the Department Heads so their goals match up
with the Selectboard’s goals.

TA Carpenter stated that they did not need to make a decision and she knew the Selectboard wanted to
meet with the Department Heads. This could be discussed with each individual. She believes that



381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428

communication has to be consistent with all departments and they should all be utilizing the website.
The Town website is where they should be communicating information first.

Chairman Warren agreed that they should meet with the Department heads and they could discuss the
concept.

Selectman Collins stated that each Department Head needs to collaborate with the Selectboard so that
budgetarily their goals will align.

TA Carpenter stated the Department Heads have been working on communication and that’s what the
monthly reports are for and the quarterly Department Head meetings.

Selectman Collins stated there was an individual and the other Selectboard members may have also
received an email, with a road concern on Middle Rte. He stated Belmont was working on the section at
the Town line. He drove up there but couldn’t find the exact location the resident was referencing as an
issue.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated that he reached out to TA Carpenter to have the Road Agent contact
the resident.

TA Carpenter also stated she could not find the area the resident was referencing. She also had not
heard back from the Road Agent at this time.

PUBLIC COMMENT - 7:00 p.m.

Brett Currier — He stated he wanted to poll the Selectboard and see who thinks it's a good idea to cross-
train the Highway Department to work at the Transfer Station.

The Selectboard consensus was that they believed it was a good idea.

Brett Currier asked if they believed they had enough personnel to be able to do what they are supposed
to be doing and should be doing what they should on the roads and forget about the Transfer Station.
Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated that they are cross-trained for both jobs.

Brett Currier asked why they would ever work at the Transfer Station.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated what is someone was out sick, or they need help.

Brett Currier stated they never need help on the roads, correct? And stated they do not have enough
employee to work on the roads. So, the Selectboard should not be taking them to manage the Transfer
Station. He believes the Transfer Station needs their own employees. He stated that the Town wouldn’t
take PD or Fire to go to the Transfer Station, why would the Selectboard take the Highway Department
and they were very important. He stated the Highway Department is unable to do their job if they're at
the Transfer Station.

Brett Currier stated that this is one reason the Petition Warrant Article is coming forward and not
moving to a DPW Director. He stated that January 9™ was the deadline for the Warrant Article. He
asked where the Selectboard would be if there was a storm and the Road Agent knew he was not going
to be employed after the March election, and if there was an interim planned? He stated there was a
rumor that a guy from Alton was going to cover after the Road Agent was gone.

Chairman Warren stated he would speak to that directly. He stated he has no information of that at all.
He stated currently the Road Agent has been out and the Foreman has been taking the lead on the work
that needs to be done.

Brett Currier stated if the Selectboard had the DPW Director position as of last March, and it has not
even been posted for applications as of January 9", and doesn’t understand why they haven’t done
interviews. He doesn’t understand why they were so late in posting an application process for that
position. He stated that now, Vice Chairman Baiocchetti is blaming the petition warrant article.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated he was not blaming anything. He stated it stopped the work they had
been doing.

Brett Currier stated the public couldn’t see any progress.



429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti clarified that the Selectboard has been working on this since April. He asked
where Brett Currier was this entire time. They had this process in place and timelines, and it was going
to be posted after the first of the year.

Brett Currier asked if it was reflected in any of the Meeting Minutes because he’s not going to come to
every meeting to see what they're discussing. He stated he should know as a tax payer what the
Selectboard is discussing and it should be reflected in the Board of Selectmen minutes. He stated he
didn’t see it, so if he doesn’t see it, it didn’t happen.

Chairman Warren stated to Brett Currier that he could have called the Chairman at any time and had a
conversation.

Brett Currier stated what about the rest of the residents. The residents need to know what the
Selectboard is talking about. Other then what is placed in the minutes, they only hear rumors. That’s
why residents get mad because they don’t know what the Selectboard is doing.

Chairman Warren stated if Brett Currier was hearing rumors, that he should have approached them and
stated that they need to do a better job for the residents and this is a big deal for the community, and
get the correct information out there, the Selectboard would do what they could to get it out there to
the public.

Brett Currier stated that they’re saying they’re communicating to the residents, but if it’s not reflected in
the minutes, the residents are not getting it. He stated that there are eight days until elections and
there is no Town Report out and the residents are complaining.

TA Carpenter stated she wanted to make some clarifications. The Transfer Station versus the DPW,
there are not enough employees for either department. The reason the Highway Department was
certified to handle the Transfer Station, is because when the Transfer Station went through its transition
no one could handle the waste, unless they were certified. Other DPW’s have a level of cross-trainings
that occur.

Regarding the timeline for the DPW issue, they could have posted one for what they thought they would
be able to do. She believes there were three different sets of minutes that reflected a process. She
doesn’t disagree that they could have put out a timeline and have it more clearly reflected. She is trying
to get good communication out to the residents so they can clearly see and understand. If they do not
have a budget for Highway, it limits how much they would be able to say they are able to do. And not
having a salary makes a difference in the information being put out and say this is what the Selectboard
is moving forward with. There are surrounding communities also looking for a DPW Director, without a
salary, it limits the Town to what they would be able to support by 2024.

Brett Currier stated that Gilmanton cannot be compared to Tilton and Alton.

TA Carpenter stated Brett Currier can say they can’t compare, but that’s who they are competing with
for the same pool of potential employees.

Brett Currier stated that was true, because the Town is going for a DPW Director instead of a Road
Agent.

The Selectboard clarified they are not going for anything. The residents wanted this.

Brett Currier stated when the Selectboard posts the letter they are putting forward, the Selectboard is
saying they want a DPW.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they already said no, it’s on the warrant.

Brett Currier stated it was Vice Chairman Baiocchetti’ s opinion.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated it was not his opinion. Personally, he does not care. The Selectboard
has made all these decisions and done all this work based on the directive of the residents. In the best
interest of the Town, that is the way that the Selectboard decided they were going to go. The residents
said they wanted a DPW Director.

David Clairmont stated that it was not given to them as an option.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated it was brought to the Selectboard, they did not go out and solicit it.



477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523

David Clairmont stated he agrees with Brett Currier, it’s not like they can say they have a great highway
department and can give employees over to the Transfer Station to help. If the roads need work, they
don’t want their Highway Department employees at the Transfer Station pushing a button. The
Highway Department needs to be making sure first and foremost that the roadways are safe.

Chairman Warren stated he agrees 100%. He stated the reality is there is not enough employees to
keep up with the work, this is why they are actively doing this. What they are trying to accomplish is
better management, and with better management, hopefully will produce better results and cost the
Town less long term. He agrees with Vice Chairman Baiocchetti and stated they are there to support the
people of the Town. It would be unfortunate to not move forward with a DPW Director because they
have put a lot of work in moving towards that, but if the residents want a Road Agent they will support
that. He does believe it to be a management issue and he does believe that the Highway Department is
underfunded, but he understands it is a conservative Town. The reality is the roads are going to require
more money, better management, and the Selectboard has asked the Department to create a plan
based on the LRPC assessment to keep things moving forward.

David Clairmont stated that they need to fix the Road Agent piece, and if the Transfer Station doesn’t
have enough employees, it's unfortunate, and the dump closes. What is more unfortunate is watching a
road wash out because the Highway Department employees are not out working on the roads, because
that costs the Town a lot more than a day without the dump.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they are not going to be at the Transfer Station all the time. They
didn’t have anyone else certified, aside from one employee. Now they have a few more people certified
so if there is a problem they can work on it. The DPW Director can also supervise that.

David Clairmont asked if the Transfer Station is short an employee, and the Highway Department has
worked his 40 hours, but is called to fill in at the dump, they’re available but it’s going to cost a lot of
money to have them there.

TA Carpenter stated, no. The Town has not, aside from the cleanup process and utilizing equipment
operators to clean certain areas, they have not pulled the Highway employees off the roads to work the
Transfer Station. There is a Foreman that was taken from the Highway Department because there was a
job opening, and he decided he wanted to take it for the promotion. He understood that he was still
going to be an equipment operator in inclement weather. He was doing double duty, cleaning up the
Transfer Station and when the facility is not open and there is inclement weather, he will go provide
extra hours to the Highway Department. When the Transfer Station was sick, they were close to closing,
but they didn’t consider taking any employees from the Highway Department to cover for that. She
stated there is a management issue that needs to be addressed at the Highway Department. There was
a management issue that needed to be addressed at the Transfer Station and unfortunately, there is not
a large pool of people to draw from. She would like to have one additional Transfer Station employee
and they would be set, but they do not even have individuals applying.

David Clairmont stated the DPW Director is not expected to be in a plow truck.

TA Carpenter stated, yes, he is.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti also stated, yes, he is.

David Clairmont questioned he is going to be a working and on the ground?

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated all Department Heads are the same, and none are strictly
administrative.

David Clairmont asked how the DPW Director is going to manage Parks & Rec, Highway, and Transfer
Station?

TA Carpenter stated that Park & Rec is normal, and she is the one that currently runs it. Parks does not
have the equipment to take care of the beach or the ball field. Seasonally, the Highway Department is
asked to help with the Park. Anytime they have requested equipment for the Park, the residents state



524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571

that the Highway Department has equipment. So, in order to save money, they utilize Highway
equipment.

David Clairmont asked if the money would be better spent and asked subcontractors to take care of the
Park instead of ignoring the state of the roads.

TA Carpenter stated this is something that has been historically done and it was understood that the
residents didn’t want additional money spent at the park. So, they use the resources that the Town has.
David Clairmont stated that the Town was taking them from working on the road issues and that’s
where they should have been. He stated that the DPW Director the Town is proposing is going to have
to be a wizard, because he's going to have to manage all this and make it all happen.

TA Carpenter stated that there needs to be more staff.

David Clairmont stated the Town should allow the DPW Director to get their feet on the ground with the
Highway Department and then add to their duties. He stated it would be like telling Chief Currier they
want him to run the Fire House, Police, and when he’s done, send someone over to pick up the trash.
TA Carpenter stated that is what’s expected of the Town Administrator. You’'re saying you run the Park,
run Town Hall, then because there is no management at the Transfer Station the Town Administrator
will manage them, so it’s already being done to a Department Head.

David Clairmont asked then why isn’t the Selectboard giving options requesting more money.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti asked if he went to any of the Budget Committee meetings.

David Clairmont stated he did not.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they did that already. They cannot find employees.

David Clairmont stated that they have to do what they people want and respects the job that the
Selectboard has been tasked with. The Town needs a highway person by election day.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they were told to scale back. They would discuss at interviews for the
DPW Director what is needed, what they see, and where the work needs to be concentrated.

Brett Currier stated let’s discuss the Transfer Station and asked why the Selectboard hadn’t noticed that
it was a mess for years.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated he remembers when Brett Currier was a Selectman and it was a mess
then too.

Brett Currier stated that it was not like when the current Selectboard took over. He stated that the
current Transfer Station employees are not paid enough money.

Chairman Warren stated he understands that Brett Currier has a different opinion. Despite the opinions
that any of them may have, the Selectboard has to follow through with what the residents have
requested. He believes that moving to a DPW Director is a good move. This is something that has not
been brought forward before and it may work, or it may not.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated that they had an appointed Road Agent before and it went back to
being elected.

Chairman Warren believes if they have someone that has great management skills, who knows how to
operate, and knows about roads, and also had administrative skills as well, and can also work on grants
there is a possibility they will start moving in the right direction.

TA Carpenter explained that they would have to set a priority level and the Selectboard already has
been discussing the plans. They are looking for an educated individual to come in and say, this is how
it’s going to get turned around, these are the priorities.

Brett Currier stated that he wanted the Selectboard to say that it is only a theory. They cannot tell the
Town of Gilmanton that a DPW Director is going to save the Town money. That’s their theory, the
Selectboard only thinks it will. Brett stated he believes it’s going to blow up and be a bunch of trucks,
and cost a bunch of money.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated how is all that going to get past the Selectboard and past the Budget
Committee.



572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618

Brett Currier stated that he didn’t know, that a lot of things have got past them. There is a lot of money
spent in this town.
Chairman Warren stated that the Selectboard just tried to share the information they have with the
residents. He addressed David Clairmont and asked if he had anything additional to share.
e David Clairmont stated that he signed the petition that is out, because he believes that the Selectboard
is going to overwhelm the individual with what the Selectboard is requiring of them.
TA Carpenter stated that Brett Currier and David Clairmont said it was going to cost a lot of money for
the DPW versus the Road Agent. It requires staff and a qualified individual no matter the title. It is
going to require more funding. There currently is not enough staff and it’s going to cost more
regardless. The reason it wasn’t requested additional positions, plus a DPW is because of the cost. They
did not want to see more positions added without a plan. If there is not the correct management at the
top, how do you come up with a plan? With the appropriate management, you get a plan, and then you
figure it out from there. She has been working with the Transfer Station and Highway Department, on
what employees want, and what the residents want, but get only complaints, and no solutions.
David Clairmont stated that they need to figure out how to solve that. He understands how much it
costs. He would like someone to build a good Highway Department. He does not know what happened
at the Transfer Station to cause the employees to be removed. He feels the problem was self-induced
and that they should have had a replacement before they got rid of them.
TA Carpenter stated that they could not. And based on the allegations that were brought forward,
investigations were done, and then a decision was made. If a predetermination is made as a
municipality, they can be sued for that. They couldn’t preemptively have their Highway Department
certified, just in case. So, they waited for the determination and then the Selectboard made their
decision. Unfortunately, it resulted in 3 employees being removed. It was impactful because they were
only a department of 4 employees. She addressed Brett Currier’s statement of where was the
Selectboard, and in the last 4 years this board has been trying to get the Transfer Station cleaned up
through HR processes, cooperation, and unfortunately there was no cooperation.
David Clairmont stated that he is worried about election day and essentially there will not be any lead at
all.
e Brett Currier stated there is a foreman who can take over.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they will be discussing that later.
Chairman Warren thanked them for coming in and discussing their difference of opinions but the
petition warrant article that was brought forward has put them in a holding pattern. They will work
through as they always do and the conversations face to face is helpful so they understand where
everyone is coming from.

Vice Chairman Baiocchetti stated they could not go into Non-Public for a public official, however, the reason

they are going into Non-Public is to talk about other non-elected officials.

Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to move into Non-
Public 91-A:3 (a). (3-0)

Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to come out of Non-
Public 91-A:3 (a). (3-0)

This Non-Public was to discuss employee hours and transition with employees.

Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to move into Non-
Public 91-A:3 (a). (3-0)

Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to come out of Non-
Public 91-A:3 (a). (3-0)

This Non-Public was held to discuss the conditional letters of employment for the Police Department.



619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632

633
634
635
636
637
638

Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to move into Non-
Public 91-A:3 (a). (3-0)

Motion: On a motion by Chairman Warren and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to come out of Non-
Public 91-A:3 (a). (3-0)

This was held to take a vote on the conditional offers for the Police Department.

Motion: On a motion by Vice Chairman Baiocchetti and seconded by Selectman Collins it was voted to seal the
Non-Public Minutes for a period of 6 months. (3-0)

Motion: On a motion by Selectman Collins and seconded by Chairman Warren it was voted to adjourn. (3-0)

Adjourned - Time not captured

Respectfully Submitted,
L0aD;

Amanda Davis, Administrative Assistant

Approved by the Board of Selectrf?Hﬁ = Z
— — .
VN vy (G O[T Gris

Chairman Mark E. Warren Vice-Chair Vincent A. Baiocchetti Selectmen Evan Collins



ATTENDANCE SIGN-IN

PRINT NAME

r/;)'ﬂ— (\ N2l

SIGNATURE & DATE

\a\ u\cv CL.'N fV\—CJ/LT

‘ﬁlﬂ’ (/'\ ? \\ o )&







